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November 24, 2010 
 
 

ADDENDUM #2 
NWRFP-10-28 

Supply and Installation of Security Camera System 
New Westminster, BC 

 
 

This addendum modifies the Request for Proposal only as noted: 
 
1. APPENDIX B – LOCATION SKETCHES 
<ADD> Drawing A2.05 Century House/Youth Centre Lower Floor Plan (1 page) 
 
<ADD> Drawing A2.06 Century House/Youth Centre Main Floor Plan (1 page) 
 
 
2. SITE VISISTS 
Additional site visits to take measurements, photographs etc, can be arranged by contacting the 
following staff at the location: 
Queen’s Park Maintenance Yard: James Doan 604-830-6963 
Queen’s Park Arena: Ron Booth or Mark Stevens (8:30 am to 4:00 pm) 
Century House / Youth Centre: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 between 1:00 pm and 3:00 
pm, or for access to the public areas, please check in with the front counter staff. 
 
3. QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
Q1 What is the timeline for the work?  
 
A1 The successful contractor should be prepared to commence the work within 15 days of 

the issuance of the Notice of Award. 
 
Q2 What is the budget for this project? 
 
A2 The City does not release the budget amount for projects of this type. The City expects the 

Proponents to provide rates/prices that accurately reflect the scope of the project. 
 
Q3 The City will pay for the building permit. Will the successful contractor be required to 

provide electrical permits for each site? 
 
A3 If required, the electrical permits will be the Contractor’s responsibility. 
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Q4 Does the Scope of Work include supply and installation of cable and conduit for new 

cameras? 
 
A4 Yes 
 
Q5 What would the City like done with the existing cameras being replaced? 
 
A5 The Contractor is required to dispose of the cameras and other materials removed from 

City facilities in accordance with the General Requirements (Paragraph 22.0) and 
General Conditions. 

 
Q6 During the site walk you stated that most of the camera locations where to give an 

overview of what was going on in that area. This contradicts item 10.5.f which states 
“Retrieved images from server must be at high enough resolution to enable facial 
recognition”. The jump from “overview” of the area to “facial recognition” for all 
cameras would increase the camera cost tenfold. The only location that requested this 
during the site walk was for the entrances to the Arena. The other areas that this might be 
practical would be the entrances to the Century House and Youth Centre. Please clarify if 
this Facial Recognition resolution will be required and if so at which locations/areas. 

 
A6 The video needs to be of high enough resolution to recognize individuals when there is an 

incident and the police need to view the video  
 
Q7 The iSCSI SAN is specified to be expandable up to 144TB yet I cannot see a requirement 

for the size of the storage required to be provided. 
 
A7 Left to the Proponents to recommend the best solution. 
 
Q8 10.4.c states that there are to be 3 client/user viewing connections. You should state 

locations as these would require network drops. Also are you looking for the hardware 
i.e.: the workstations to run the Client/user application (how many monitors per client). 

 
A8 Client/user viewing connections will be using existing network drops. We should be able 

to view video using regular XP SP2 workstations. 
 
Q9 10.3 ask for a server and storage must support sustained 900Mb/s i/o stream and up to 

200K IOPS, and then goes on to say the initial setup will be one server and one SAN but 
must be scalable . Is the 900Mb/s meant to be over multiple servers in the future, or for 
just the one we are to provide for this contract?  

 
A9 900 Mb/s i/o stream to a single server (It would have to be a specialized design). 
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Q10 What bandwidth and details of the connections that exist between City Hall (head-end 

CCTV Server/storage) and the 3 facilities needing IP cameras? (Recommend local 
server/storage for on-site cams with Enterprise-level Video Mgmt System to manage, 
view, playback, archive, etc. each remote system as one integrated system. Reliability, 
stability and system integrity is significantly improved in a scenario such as this) 

 
A10 Currently we have a 2Gb/s fibre backbone between the remote sites and City Hall  As the 

video system expands over time the plan is either to expand it the backbone or give the 
video system its own separate network. 

 
Q11 Clarification regarding CH/YC camera coverage for the water park area or just washroom 

building?  
 
A11 Requirement for outdoor washroom is just the area immediately around the washroom 

building. 
 
Q12 Can you please provide some information regarding camera spec requirements? (i.e. 

Day/Night outdoor, .3 Megapixels, 1.3 Megapixel, etc.) 
 
A12 Did not specify this information as it is best left to the Proponents to recommend the best 

solution at each location. 
 
Q13 Are there preferred manufacturers regarding the VMS (Video Management System) 

and/or cameras you require. 
 
A13 No, minimum specifications are included in the RFP document. 
 
Q14 Is there is a conduit path from the main building to the washrooms, with room remaining 

to get some cables through? 
 
A14 Yes. The route is quite long though. 
 
Q15 Is there an existing rack location and if so, how much room is available for new servers? 

Would it be possible to head to this location to view power and space requirements? 
 
A15 There is plenty of rack space available. 
 
Q16 Is there a specific expectation of storage size for the initial roll out, or is there an 

expected recording length at a given frame rate? 
 
A16 Let's start with 16TB to 20TB 
 
Q17 Will the City be providing a power lift for the installations of the exterior cameras in all 

three locations? 
 
A17 No, the successful Contractor will provide all tools and equipment required for 

installation. 
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Q18 For the Arena is all cabling required to be in conduit or just those exposed to the general 
public? 

 
A18 All exposed cabling below 10 feet should be in conduit. 
 
Q19 What will be the weighted decision between price and design? How will this be marked? 
 
A19 The City’s evaluation process is explained in Article 17.0 of the Request for Proposal 

Document. The City does not release the evaluation criteria weightings. 
 
Q20 The frame rates are not specified for the CCTV cameras, is 7 images per second 

acceptable or would you like a lesser quality image at 9?  
 
A20 Left to the Proponents to recommend the best solution. 
 
Q21 What is the required storage capacity/video retention period for these cameras?  
 
A21 Left to the Proponents to recommend the best solution. 
 
Q22 It has been indicated that the system should be expandable up to 144 TB, but I see no 

indication of the initial storage requirement in terms of days or disk space. 
 
A22 Let's start with 16TB to 20TB 
 
Q23 Redundancy in the SOFTWARE, there is a mention that it be failover just CAPABLE of 

failover not Failover OPERATIVE - is this correct? This pertains to the amount of 
camera licenses. 

 
A23 The goal is to have the correct software in place so when we expand the system to 

multiple servers, the system is capable of failing over the cameras between servers. 
 
Q24 The spec calls for 15 concurrent licenses for the system. To clarify, do you want 15 

simultaneous views of the system or do you want 15 different viewing stations with 
varying times of viewing for each server? 

 
A24 We want to have 3 simultaneous viewers to start. Expandable to at least 15 simultaneous 

viewers later when we expand the system 
 
Please acknowledge this addendum in your Proposal. 
 
END OF ADDENDUM #2 
 
Yours truly, 
 

Heather M Rossi 
Heather M. Rossi 
Intermediate Buyer 
email: hrossi@newwestcity.ca  
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